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NATURE OF THE ACTION

1 Thisis asecurities fraud class action on behaf of purchasers of the common stock of
Enron Corp. ("Enron") between January 18, 2000 and October 17, 2001, inclusive (the "Class
Period"), seeking to pursue remedies under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act”).

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. The claims asserted herein arise under and pursuant to Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the
Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 88 78j(b) and 78t(a)] and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder by the
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5].

3. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C.

88 1331 and 1337 and Section 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78aa].



4. Venueis proper in this Didrict pursuant to Section 27 of the Exchange Act, and 28
U.S.C. § 1391(b). Enron maintainsits principa place of busnessin this Digtrict and many of the acts
and practices complained of herein occurred in subgtantid part in this Didtrict.

5. In connection with the acts alleged in this complaint, defendants, directly or indirectly,
used the means and indrumentaities of interstate commerce, including, but not limited to, the malils,
interstate telephone communications and the facilities of the national securities markets.

PARTIES

6. (@ Paintiff Seth Abrams, as st forth in the accompanying certification, incorporated
by reference herein, purchased the common stock of Enron at artificialy inflated prices during the Class
Period and has been damaged thereby.

(b) Maintiff Steven Frank, as set forth in the accompanying certification, incorporated
by reference herein, purchased the common stock of Enron at artificialy inflated prices during the Class
Period and has been damaged thereby.

7. Defendant Enron is an Oregon corporation with its principa place of business at 1400
Smith Street, Houston, Texas. Enron conducts eectricity, natura gas and communications businesses.

8. Defendant Kenneth L. Lay ("Lay") served at dl time revant hereto as a director of the
Company and Chairman of the Board of Directors. Lay aso served as the Chief Executive Officer
until February 2001.

0. Defendant Jeffrey K. Skilling served at dl times relevant hereto as adirector of the
Company. Skilling so served as the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer until his

resignation from those posts in August 2001.



10.  Defendant Andrew S. Fastow served at al relevant times hereto as the Chief Financia
Officer of the Company.

11.  The defendants referenced above in 1 8-10 are referred to herein as the "Individua
Defendants.”

12. Because of the Individua Defendants positions with the Company, they had accessto
the adverse undisclosed information about its business, operations, products, operationa trends,
financid statements, markets and present and future business prospects via access to internal corporate
documents (including the Company's operating plans, budgets and forecasts and reports of actud
operations compared thereto), conversations and connections with other corporate officers and
employees, attendance at management and Board of Directors meetings and committees thereof and
viareports and other information provided to them in connection therewith.

13. It is appropriate to treet the Individual Defendants as a group for pleading purposes and
to presume that the false, mideading and incomplete information conveyed in the Company's public
filings, press releases and other publications as aleged herein are the collective actions of the narrowly
defined group of defendants identified above. Each of the above officers of Enron, by virtue of their
high-level positions with the Company, directly participated in the management of the Company, was
directly involved in the day-to-day operations of the Company at the highest levels and was privy to
confidentia proprietary information concerning the Company and its business, operations, products,
growth, financial statements, and financia condition, as dleged herein. Said defendants were involved
in drafting, producing, reviewing and/or disseminating the false and mideading Satements and

informetion alleged herein, were aware, or recklesdy disregarded, that the false and mideading



statements were being issued regarding the Company, and approved or ratified these statements, in
violaion of the federal securities laws.

14.  Asofficersand controlling persons of a publicly-held company whose common stock
was, and is, registered with the SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act, and was traded on the New Y ork
Stock Exchange (the “NY SE”), and governed by the provisions of the federd securities laws, the
Individual Defendants each had a duty to disseminate promptly, accurate and truthful information with
respect to the Company's financia condition and performance, growth, operations, financia statements,
business, products, markets, management, earnings and present and future business prospects, and to
correct any previoudy-issued statements that had become materially mideading or untrue, so that the
market price of the Company's publicly-traded securities would be based upon truthful and accurate
information. The Individua Defendants misrepresentations and omissions during the Class Period
violated these specific requirements and obligations.

15.  Thelndividua Defendants participated in the drafting, preparation, and/or approva of
the various public and shareholder and investor reports and other communications complained of herein
and were aware of, or recklessy disregarded, the misstatements contained therein and omissions
therefrom, and were aware of their materialy false and mideading nature. Because of their Board
membership and/or executive and managerid positions with Enron, each of the Individual Defendants
had access to the adverse undisclosed information about Enron’ s business prospects and financid
condition and performance as particularized herein and knew (or recklesdy disregarded) that these
adverse facts rendered the positive representations made by or about Enron and its business issued or

adopted by the Company materidly fase and mideading.



16.  Thelndividud Defendants, because of their positions of control and authority as officers
and/or directors of the Company, were able to and did control the content of the various SEC filings,
press releases and other public statements pertaining to the Company during the Class Period. Each
Individual Defendant was provided with copies of the documents aleged herein to be mideading prior
to or shortly after their issuance and/or had the ability and/or opportunity to prevent their issuance or
cause them to be corrected. Accordingly, each of the Individua Defendantsis responsible for the
accuracy of the public reports and releases detailed herein and is therefore primarily liable for the
representations contained therein.

17. Each of the defendants isliable as a participant in a fraudulent scheme and course of
business that operated as a fraud or deceit on purchasers of Enron common stock by disseminating
materidly false and mideading statements and/or concedling materia adversefacts. The scheme: (i)
decelved the investing public regarding Enron’ s business, operations, management and the intringc
vaue of Enron common stock; (i) enabled Enron to sl $1.25 billion of convertible preferred
securities on favorable terms and Enron ingders sdl more than $73 miillion of their persondly-held
Enron common stock to the unsuspecting public; and (iii) caused plaintiffs and other members of the

Class to purchase Enron securities & artificidly inflated prices.



PLAINTIFES CLASSACTION ALLEGATIONS

18. Paintiffs bring this action as a class action pursuant to Federd Rule of Civil Procedure
23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a Class, conssting of al those who purchased or otherwise acquired the
securities of Enron between January 18, 2000 and October 17, 2001, inclusive (the "Class Period")
and who were damaged thereby. Excluded from the Class are defendants, the officers and directors of
the Company, a al rdevant times, members of their immediate families and their legal representatives,
heirs, successors or assigns and any entity in which defendants have or had a controlling interest.

19.  Themembers of the Class are o numerous that joinder of al membersisimpracticable.
Throughout the Class Period, Enron common shares were actively traded on the NYSE. Whilethe
exact number of Class membersis unknown to plaintiffs at thistime and can only be ascertained
through appropriate discovery, plaintiff believes that there are hundreds or thousands of membersin the
proposed Class. Record owners and other members of the Class may be identified from records
maintained by Enron or its transfer agent and may be notified of the pendency of this action by mail,
using the form of notice Smilar to that customarily used in securities class actions.

20. Faintiffs clamsaretypica of the clams of the members of the Class as dl members of
the Class are amilarly affected by defendants wrongful conduct in violation of federa law that is
complained of herein.

21. Fantiffswill fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the Classand

has retained counsd competent and experienced in class and securities litigation.



22.  Common questions of law and fact exist asto al members of the Classand
predominate over any questions olely affecting individua members of the Class. Among the questions
of law and fact common to the Class are:

(@ whether the federd securities laws were violated by defendants acts as adleged
herein;

(b) whether statements made by defendants to the investing public during the Class
Period misrepresented materia facts about the business, operations and management of Enron; and

() towhat extent the members of the Class have sustained damages and the proper
measure of damages.

23.  Adassactionissuperior to dl other avalable methods for the fair and efficient
adjudication of this controversy since joinder of al membersisimpracticable. Furthermore, asthe
damages suffered by individua Class members may be rdaively smal, the expense and burden of
individua litigation make it impossible for members of the Classto individualy redress the wrongs done

to them. There will be no difficulty in the management of this action as a class action.



SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS

Backaground Facts

24, Enron conducts dectricity, natural gas and communications businesses. The Company
produces dectricity and natura gas, develops, constructs and operates energy facilities worldwide and
delivers both physical commodities and financia and risk management services to cusomers.

25.  Throughout fiscal year 2000, the price of Enron common stock substantially increased -
- rising from $43.4375 per share on January 3, 2000 to $83.125 per share on December 29, 2000.
Analyds attributed the price rise to, among other things, interest and expectations for Enron's
Broadband Services divison ("Broadband Services Divison'), which was to trade bandwidth and, as
described by the Company, "deploy agloba network for the ddivery of comprehensive bandwidth
solutions and high bandwidth applications” Unbeknownst to investors, however, the Broadband
Services Divison was not performing as defendants had led the market to believe. Indeed, among
other adverse factors detailed herein, Broadband Services was experiencing declining demand for
bandwidth and the Company's efforts to creete a trading market for bandwidth were not meeting with
success as many of the market participants were not creditworthy.

26. Further exacerbating the problems at the Broadband Services Divison, Enron had
agreed to a series of complicated financid hedge transactions with two limited partnerships, which were
controlled by Enron's Chief Financid Officer, defendant Andrew Fastow. These transactions, which
Enron has yet to fully detal for investors, purportedly involved hedging transactions in the broadband
market and exposed the Company to increased risk and uncertainty given the weakening market for

bandwidith.



27.  Theproblems at the Broadband Services Divison finaly began to be revealed on
October 16, 2001. On that date, Enron surprised the market by announcing that the Company was
taking non-recurring charges of $1.01 billion after-tax, or ($1.11) loss per diluted share, in the third
quarter of 2001, the period ending September 30, 2001. Defendant Lay commented on the substantia
charge, sating:

After athrough review of our businesses, we have decided to take these charges to

clear away issuesthat have clouded our performance and earnings potentia of our core

energy businesses.

The press release further detailed the charge asfollows: $287 miillion related to asset impairments
recorded by Azurix Corp.; $180 million associated with the restructuring of the Company's Broadband
Services division; $544 million related to losses associated with certain investments and early
termination during the third quarter of certain structured finance arrangements with a previoudy
disclosed entity.

28.  Anatidein The Wall Street Journa, on October 17, 2001, further explained the

nature of the "structured finance arrangements with a previoudy disclosed entity,” which was mentioned
in the Company's earnings release. According to the article, the structured finance arrangements
involved limited partnerships that were managed by Enron's Chief Financia Officer, defendant Fastow.
The article dated in pertinent part asfollows:

The two partnerships, LIM Cayman LP and the much larger LIM2 Co-Investment LP,
have engaged in billions of dollars of complex hedging transactions with Enron involving
company assets and millions of shares of Enron stock. It isn't clear from Enron filings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission what Enron received in return for
providing these assets and shares. In anumber of transactions, notes receivable were
provided by partnership-related entities.



29.  Thenext day, on October 18, 2001, The Wall Street Journad further reported on the

nature of defendant Fastow's financid arrangements with the Company. The article reported thét,
"Enron had shrank its shareholder equity by $1.2 billion as the Company had decided to repurchase 55
million of its shares that it had issued as part of a series of complex transactions with an investment
vehicle" connected to defendant Fastow. The article stated in pertinent part asfollows:

According to Rick Causay, Enron's chief accounting officer, these shares were

contributed to a"structured finance vehicle' set up about two years ago in which Enron

and LIM2 were the only investors. In exchange for the stock, the entity provided

Enron with anote. The aim of the transaction was to provide hedges againg fluctuating

vauesin some of Enron's broadband telecommunications and other technology

invesments.

30.  Inresponseto the news tha Enron would be diminating more than $1 hillion of
shareholder equity and that it might impact the Company's credit rating, on October 18, 2001, the price
of Enron common stock declined sharply, falling from $32.20 per share to $29.00 per share on
extremely heavy trading volume. Asthe market continued to digest the information, the price of Enron
stock continued to decline, trading as low as $25.87 per share on October 19, 2001.

31.  Asnow reveded, a dl times during the Class Period, defendantsissued false and
mideading statements and press releases concerning Enron's financid results, the performance of its
Broadband Services Division and the Company's outlook and prospects. During the Class Period,
before the disclosure of the true facts, defendants Skilling and Lay and certain Enron indders sold their

personaly-held Enron common stock generating more than $73 million in proceeds and the Company

raised $1.25 billion in a convertible notes offering.
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Materially False And Misleading
Statements Issued During The Class Period

32.  TheClass Period begins on January 18, 2000. On that date, Enron issued a press
release announcing its financid results for the fourth quarter of 1999 and fiscal year 1999. The
Company reported that for fiscal 1999 it earned $957 million and had revenues of $40 billion.
Defendant Lay commented on the results, stating in pertinent part as follows:

Our gtrong results in both the fourth quarter and full year 1999 reflect excdllent

performancein al of our operating busnesses. . . In addition, Enron continues to

develop innovative, high-growth new businesses that capitalize on our core skills, as

demonstrated by the early success of our new broadband services businesses. Overall,

agreat year -- one in which our shareholders recelved atota return of 58 percent.

33.  OnJanuary 20, 2000, Enron issued a press release announcing that the Company had
hosted its annual andlyst conference in Houston that same day. With respect to the Boradband
Services Division, the press release stated in pertinent part as follows:

The new name of Enron’'s communications business, Enron Broadband Services,

reflectsitsrole in the very fast growing market for premium broadband services. Enron

is deploying an open flexible globa broadband network controlled by software

intelligence, which precludes the need to invest in atraditiona point-to-point fiber

network.

34.  OnApril 12, 2000, Enron issued a press release announcing its financia results for the
first quarter of 2000, the period ending March 31, 2000. The Company reported net income of $338
million, or $0.40 per share, and revenues of $13.1 hillion. Defendant Lay highlighted the Company's
Broadband business, gating in pertinent part as follows:

In our newest business, we significantly advanced deployment of our broadband

network and saw strong response to our bandwidth intermediation and content delivery
products.

11



The press release further described the developments in the Broadband business as follows:

Enron isreplicating its unique business modd and skills to deploy a globa network for
the ddlivery of comprehensive bandwidth solutions and high bandwidth applications.

During the firgt quarter, Enron significantly advanced its network development. New
agreements have been signed with over 20 broadband distribution partners . .

35.  OnJduly 24, 2000, Enron issued a press release announcing its financid results for the
second quarter of 2000, the period ending June 30, 2000. The Company reported net income of $289
million, or $0.34 per share, and revenues of $16.9 billion for the second quarter. Defendant Lay
described the results as "another excdlent quarter” and highlighted that Enron Broadband had recently
executed "an exclusive, 20-year, first-of-its-kind contract with Blockbuster to stream on-demand
movies." The press release further reported that Enron Broadband had executed $19 million of new
contracts.

36.  On October 17, 2000, Enron issued a press release announcing its financia results for
the third quarter of 2000, the period ending September 30, 2000. The Company reported net income
of $292 million, or $0.34 per share, and revenues of $30 billion. Defendant Lay commented on the
results stating in pertinent part asfollows:

Enron delivered very srong earnings growth again this quarter, further demondtrating

the leading market positions in each of our mgjor businesses. . . We operate in some of

the largest and fastest growing markets in the world and we are very optimistic about

the continued strong outlook for our company.

With respect to Broadband Services, the press release reported, among other things, that "Enron

delivered 1,399 DS-3 months equivaents of broadband capacity, which was a 42 percent increase

over the previous quarter.”

12



37.  OnJanuary 22, 2001, Enron issued a press release announcing its financia results for
the fourth quarter of 2000 and fiscal year 2000, the period ending December 31, 2000. The Company
reported earnings of $0.41 per share for the fourth quarter of 2000. Defendant Lay commented on the
results stating in pertinent part asfollows:

Our strong results reflect breakout performancesin al of our operations, . . . Our

wholesde services, retail energy and broadband businesses further expanded their

leading market positions, as reflected in record levels of physical ddliveries, contract

originations and profitability. Our shareholders had another excedllent year in 2000, as

Enron's stock returned 89 percent, significantly in excess of any mgor investment index.

With respect to Broadband Services, the press release stated:

In addition, Enron Broadband Services reported a $32 million IBIT loss. These results

include costs associated with building this new business, partidly offset by the

monetization of a portion of Enron's broadband delivery platform.

* Enron Broadband Services delivered 2,393 DS-3 month equivaents of capacity,
representing a 71 percent increase over the third quarter of 2000. In addition,
transaction levels dso sgnificantly increased to 236 transactionsin the fourth quarter,
compared to 59 transactions in the third quarter of 2000.

38.  On January 30, 2001, Enron issued a press rel ease announcing thet it had priced an

offering of 20-year zero coupon convertible senior debt securities, raising $1.25 hillion.

39.  OnApril 17, 2001, Enron issued a press release announcing its financia results for the
first quarter of 2001, the period ending March 30, 2001. The Company reported earnings per share of
$0.47 per share. Defendant Skilling commented on the results, sating in pertinent part as follows:

Enron's wholesd e business continues to generate outstanding results. Transaction and

volume growth are trandating into increased profitability . . . In addition, our retail

energy services and broadband intermediation activities are rapidly acceerating.

With respect to Broadband Services, the press release stated, among other things, as follows:

13



Enron's globa broadband platform is substantially complete, and 25 pooling points are
operating in North America, Europe and Japan. Enron's broadband intermediation
activity increased sgnificantly, with over 580 transactions executed during the quarter -
- morethanin al of 2000. Enron aso added 70 new broadband customers this quarter
for atotal of 120 customers.

40.  OnJduly 12, 2001, Enron issued a press rease announcing its financia results for the
second quarter of 2001, the period ending June 30, 2001. The Company reported diluted earnings of
$0.45 per share. Defendant Skilling downplayed any concerns investors might have about Broadband
Services, stating in pertinent part asfollows.

In contrast to our extremely strong energy results, thiswas a difficult quarter in our

broadband business. However, our asset-light approach will alow us to adjust quickly

to weak broadband industry conditions. We are sgnificantly reducing our broadband

cost structure to match the reduced revenue opportunities currently available.

41.  OnJuly 25, 2001, Bloomberg Business News reported that at a meeting with anaysts,

defendant Skilling stated that Enron will meet or best its profit projections. The article stated in

pertinent part:

"We will hit those numbers, and we will best those numbers,” Skilling told a meeting of
andysts and investorsin New York. . . .

Analysts have dso cited concern about unpaid power bills by Enron customersin
Cdiforniaand India, and losses by Enron's broadband trading unit, which may hurt

Enron's profits.

"All of these are bunk," Skilling said. "These are not issuesfor this stock.”

42.  OnAugust 14, 2001, Enron issued a press release announcing that defendant Skilling

had resigned his positions a the Company. This announcement surprised investors and the price of

Enron common stock dropped in response. According to areport carried by Bloomberg Business

News, on August 17, 2001, after the announcement of defendant Skilling's resignation, defendant Lay
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met with investors and anaysts "to cam fears that the Company may be hiding dire financid news. . . "
The article quoted an andyst from UBS Warburg as sating: "Ken met with us to reassure us that there
is nothing wrong with the company . . . There is no other shoe to fall, and no charges to be taken.”

43.  Then, on August 29, 2001, defendant Lay provided an interview to Bloomberg
Business News which was carried on the newswires. Defendant Lay portrayed the Broadband
Savices Divison in highly pogtive terms. The following question/answer isillugraive:

Johnson:  There has been alot of concern by investors recently over the

company's broadband trading unit, which trades space on fiber optic networks. Where

does Enron stand with fiber optic trading now? Have you -- do you sill remain hopeful

in that sector? Or what's the outlook now?

Lay: Why, no, that continues to grow, quarter-to-quarter, at a very good rate,

30 we're continuing to develop liquidity in the marketplace. | mean, the biggest sngle

problem has been the shortage of creditworthy counter parties to do longer term

transactions. But certainly, quarter-to-quarter, we continue to increase the number of

trades rather significantly.

44.  The statements referenced above in [ 32-37 and 39-43 above, were each materidly
fa se and mideading when made as they misrepresented and/or omitted the following adverse facts
which then existed and disclosure of which was necessary to make the statements made not false
and/or mideading, including:

(@ that Broadband Services was experiencing declining demand for bandwidth and the

Company's efforts to create atrading market for bandwidth were not meeting with success as many of

the market participants were not creditworthy;

15



(b) that the Company's operating results were materialy overstated as result of the
Company failing to timely write-down the value of its invesments with LIM Cayman LP and LIM2
Co-lnvestment LP;

(¢) that Enron wasfailing to write-down impaired assets on atimey basisin
accordance with GAAP; and

(d) asareault of the foregoing, defendants earnings projections and statements about
the Company's prospects and outlook were lacking in areasonable basis at dl times.

The Truth Begins To Be Revealed

45.  On October 16, 2001, Enron surprised the market by announcing that the Company
was taking non-recurring charges of $1.01 billion after-tax, or ($1.11) loss per diluted share, in the
third quarter of 2001, the period ending September 30, 2001. Defendant Lay commented on the
substantia charge, Sating:

After athorough review of our businesses, we have decided to take these chargesto

clear away issuesthat have clouded our performance and earnings potentia of our core

energy businesses.

The press release further detailed the charge asfollows: $287 miillion related to asset impairments
recorded by Azurix Corp.; $180 million associated with the restructuring of the Company's Broadband
Services division; $544 million related to losses asociated with certain investments and early

termination during the third quarter of certain structured finance arrangements with a previoudy

disclosed entity.

46.  Anatidein The Wal Street Journal, on October 17, 2001, further explained the

nature of the "structured finance arrangements with a previoudy disclosad entity,” which was mentioned
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in the Company's earnings release. According to the article, the structured finance arrangements
involved limited partnerships that were managed by Enron's Chief Financia Officer, defendant Fastow.
The article Sated in pertinent part as follows:

The two partnerships, LIM Cayman LP and the much larger LIM2 Co-Investment LP,
have engaged in billions of dollars of complex hedging transactions with Enron involving
company assets and millions of shares of Enron stock. It isn't clear from Enron filings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission what Enron received in return for
providing these assets and shares. In anumber of transactions, notes receivable were
provided by partnership-related entities.

47.  Thenext day, on October 18, 2001, The Wl Street Journal further reported on the

nature of defendant Fastow's financid arrangements with the Company. The article reported that
"Enron had shrank its shareholder equity by $1.2 billion as the Company had decided to repurchase 55
million of its shares that it had issued as part of a series of complex transactions with an investment
vehicle' connected to defendant Fastow. The article stated in pertinent part as follows:.

According to Rick Causay, Enron's chief accounting officer, these shares were

contributed to a"structured finance vehicle' set up about two years ago in which Enron

and LIM2 were the only investors. In exchange for the stock, the entity provided

Enron with anote. The am of the transaction was to provide hedges againg fluctuating

vauesin some of Enron's broadband telecommunications and other technology

invesments.

48. In response to the news that Enron would be reducing its shareholder equity by more
than $1 billion and that it might impact the Company's credit rating, on October 18, 2001, the price of
Enron common stock declined sharply, falling from $32.20 per share to $29.00 per share on extremely
heavy trading volume. Asthe market continued to digest the information, the price of Enron stock

continued to decline, trading as low as $25.87 per share on October 19, 2001.
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49.  Asadleged herein, defendants acted with scienter in that defendants knew that the public
documents and statements issued or disseminated in the name of the Company were materidly false
and mideading; knew that such statements or documents would be issued or disseminated to the
investing public; and knowingly and substantialy participated or acquiesced in the issuance or
dissemination of such statements or documents as primary violations of the federd securitieslaws. As
set forth esawhere herein in detail, defendants, by virtue of their receipt of information reflecting the true
facts regarding Enron, their control over, and/or receipt and/or modification of Enron’s dlegedly
materidly mideading misstatements and/or their associations with the Company which made them privy
to confidentia proprietary information concerning Enron, participated in the fraudulent scheme aleged
herein.

50. Defendants scienter is further evidenced by the insder sdlling of certain of the
Individual Defendants and other Enron Ingders. Thistrading was unusua and suspicious given its
timing and amount as follows

defendant Lay: sold 84,714 shares from Jan. 2 to Jan. 31 for $68.28 to $82 each, or

more than $5.78 million; sold 80,680 shares from Dec. 1 to Dec. 29 for $67.19 to

$84.06 each, or more than $5.42 million. The sdestotal $11.2 million

defendant Skilling: sold 50,000 shares from Jan. 3 to Jan. 31 for $68.94 to $80.28

each, or more than $3.45 million; sold 20,000 shares from Dec. 20 to Dec. 27 for

$79.03 to $83 each, or more than $1.58 million, and 20,000 shares from Dec. 6 to
Dec. 13 for $68.91 to $77.06, or $1.38 million. The sdestota $6.41 million

Mark Frevert, Enron Wholesale Services chairman and chief executive: sold 180,000
shares from Dec. 18 to Dec. 20 for $79 to $79.98 each, or more than $14.2 million
The sdle brought his holdings to 223,771 shares.
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Cliff Baxter, Enron vice chairman and chief strategy officer, who sold 174,215 shares
from Jan. 2 to Jan. 31 for $69.44 to $81.31 each, or more than $12.10 million. The
sde brought his holdings to 7,877 shares.

Ken Rice, chairman and chief executive of Enron Broadband Services Inc.: sold
32,000 shares from Jan. 3 to Jan. 31 for $68.19 to $82 each, or more than $12.10
million; sold 100,000 shares on Dec. 13 for $76.69 each, or $7.67 million. The sales
total $9.185 million and brought Rice's holdings to 113,127 shares.

Steve Kean, Enron executive vice president and chief of staff: sold 77,822 shares on
Jan. 31 for $79.84 to $80 each, or more than $6.21 million The sale brought his
holdings to 26,363 shares.

Stanley Horton, chairman and chief executive of Enron Gas Pipdine Group and EOTT

Energy Partners-LP: sold 25,000 shares Jan. 29 for $30.51 each, or $2.01 million, and

25,000 shares Dec. 27 for $80.96 each, or $2.02 million The sdestotd $4.04 million

and brought his holdingsto 144,217 shares.

Richard Buy, Enron executive vice president and chief risk officer: sold 47,724 shares

from Jan. 2 to Jan. 26 for $81.90 to $82 each, or $3.91 million The sale brought his

holdings to 9,257 shares.

In totdl, the indder salling by defendants Skilling and Lay and the other Enron ingders totals more than
$73 million.

51.  Themarket for Enron’s securities was open, well-developed and efficient at al relevant
times. Asaresult of these materidly false and mideading statements and failures to disclose, Enron’'s
common stock traded at artificidly inflated prices during the Class Period. Plaintiffs and other members
of the Class purchased or otherwise acquired Enron securities relying upon the integrity of the market
price of Enron’s securities and market information relating to Enron, and have been damaged thereby.

52. During the Class Period, defendants materidly mided the investing public, thereby
inflating the price of Enron’s common stock, by publicly issuing false and mideading Satements and

omitting to disclose materia facts necessary to make defendants statements, as set forth herein, not
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false and mideading. Said statements and omissons were materidly false and mideading in that they
failed to disclose materia adverse information and misrepresented the truth about the Company, its
business and operations, as aleged herein.

53.  Atdl rdevant times, the material misrepresentations and omissions particularized in this
Complaint directly or proximately caused or were a subgtantia contributing cause of the damages
sugtained by plaintiffs and other members of the Class. As described herein, during the Class Period,
defendants made or caused to be made a series of materidly fase or mideading statements about
Enron’s business, prospects and operations. These material misstatements and omissons had the cause
and effect of creating in the market an unredidicaly postive assessment of Enron and its business,
prospects and operations, thus causing the Company's securities to be overvalued and artificialy
inflated a dl rlevant times. Defendants materidly false and mideading statements during the Class
Period resulted in plaintiff and other members of the Class purchasing the Company's securities at
atificidly inflated prices, thus causing the damages complained of herein.

Applicability Of Presumption Of Reliance:
Fraud-On-The-Market Doctrine

54.  Atdl rdevant times, the market for Enron’s securities was an efficient market for the
following reasons, anong others:
(@ Enron'sstock met the requirements for listing, and was listed and actively traded on
the NY SE, a highly efficient and automated market;
(b) Asaregulated issuer, Enron filed periodic public reports with the SEC and the

NY SE;
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(c) Enron regularly communicated with public investors via established market
communication mechanisms, including through regular disseminations of press releases on the nationd
circuits of mgor newswire services and through other wide-ranging public disclosures, such as
communications with the financid press and other smilar reporting services, and

(d) Enronwas followed by severd securities andysts employed by mgor brokerage
firms who wrote reports which were distributed to the sales force and certain customers of their
respective brokerage firms. Each of these reports was publicly available and entered the public
marketplace.

55.  Asaresult of the foregoing, the market for Enron’s securities promptly digested current
information regarding Enron from dl publicly avallable sources and reflected such information in Enron’s
stock price. Under these circumstances, dl purchasers of Enron’s securities during the Class Period
suffered smilar injury through their purchase of Enron’s securities a artificidly inflated pricesand a

presumption of reliance applies.
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NO SAFE HARBOR

56.  The gatutory safe harbor provided for forward-looking statements under certain
circumstances does not apply to any of the dlegedly fase satements pleaded in this complaint. Many
of the specific statements pleaded herein were not identified as "forward-looking statements’ when
made. To the extent there were any forward-looking statements, there were no meaningful cautionary
atements identifying important factors that could cause actud resultsto differ materialy from thosein
the purportedly forward-looking statements. Alternatively, to the extent that the statutory safe harbor
does apply to any forward-looking statements pleaded herein, defendants are liable for those fase
forward-looking statements because at the time each of those forward-looking statements was made,
the particular spesker knew that the particular forward-looking statement was fase, and/or the
forward-looking statement was authorized and/or gpproved by an executive officer of Enron who knew
that those statements were false when made.

EIRST CLAIM

Violation Of Section 10(b) Of
The Exchange Act And Rule 10b-5
Promulgated Thereunder Againgt All Defendants

57. Paintiffs repeat and redllege each and every dlegation contained above asif fully st
forth herein.

58.  During the Class Period, defendants carried out a plan, scheme and course of conduct
which was intended to and, throughout the Class Period, did: (i) deceive the investing public, including
plaintiff and other Class members, as dleged herein; (ii) enable Enron to sell $1.25 hillion of convertible

securities and Enron ingders to sl $73 million of their persondly-held common stock; and (iii) cause
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plaintiffs and other members of the Class to purchase Enron’s securities a artificidly inflated prices. In
furtherance of this unlawful scheme, plan and course of conduct, defendants, and each of them, took
the actions st forth herein.

59. Defendants () employed devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud; (b) made untrue
statements of materid fact and/or omitted to State materid facts necessary to make the statements not
mideading; and () engaged in acts, practices, and a course of business which operated as afraud and
decelt upon the purchasers of the Company's securities in an effort to maintain artificidly high market
prices for Enron’s securities in violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5. All
defendants are sued either as primary participants in the wrongful and illega conduct charged herein or
as controlling persons as dleged below.

60.  Defendants, individudly and in concert, directly and indirectly, by the use, means or
ingrumentdities of interstate commerce and/or of the mails, engaged and participated in a continuous
course of conduct to conced adverse materia information about the business, operations and future
prospects of Enron as specified herein.

61.  These defendants employed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud, whilein
possession of materia adverse non-public information and engaged in acts, practices, and a course of
conduct as aleged herein in an effort to assure investors of Enron’s value and performance and
continued substantia growth, which included the making of, or the participation in the making of, untrue
gtatements of materia facts and omitting to state materia facts necessary in order to make the
gtatements made about Enron and its business operations and future prospectsin the light of the

circumstances under which they were made, not mideading, as set forth more particularly herein, and
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engaged in transactions, practices and a course of business which operated as a fraud and deceit upon
the purchasers of Enron securities during the Class Period.

62.  Eachof theIndividuad Defendants primary ligbility, and controlling person liability,
arises from the following facts (i) the Individua Defendants were high-level executives and/or directors
at the Company during the Class Period and members of the Company's management team or had
control thereof; (ii) each of these defendants, by virtue of hisresponsbilities and activities as a senior
officer and/or director of the Company was privy to and participated in the crestion, development and
reporting of the Company'sinternal budgets, plans, projections and/or reports; (iii) each of these
defendants enjoyed significant persond contact and familiarity with the other defendants and was
advised of and had access to other members of the Company's management team, internd reports and
other data and information about the Company's finances, operations, and sdes a al relevant times,
and (iv) each of these defendants was aware of the Company's dissemination of information to the
investing public which they knew or recklesdy disregarded was materiadly fase and mideading.

63.  The defendants had actua knowledge of the misrepresentations and omissions of
materid facts set forth herein, or acted with reckless disregard for the truth in that they failed to
ascertain and to disclose such facts, even though such facts were available to them.  Such defendants
materid misrepresentations and/or omissions were done knowingly or recklesdy and for the purpose
and effect of conceding Enron’s operating condition and future business prospects from the investing
public and supporting the artificialy inflated price of its securities. As demondirated by defendants
overstatements and misstatements of the Company's business, operations and earnings throughout the

Class Period, defendants, if they did not have actua knowledge of the misrepresentations and

24



omissions aleged, were recklessin falling to obtain such knowledge by deliberatdly refraining from
taking those steps necessary to discover whether those statements were fase or mideading.

64.  Asareault of the disssmingion of the materidly fase and mideading information and
failure to disclose materid facts, as set forth above, the market price of Enron’s securities was
atificidly inflated during the Class Period. Inignorance of the fact that market prices of Enron’s
publicly-traded securities were artificidly inflated, and relying directly or indirectly on the false and
mideading Satements made by defendants, or upon the integrity of the market in which the securities
trade, and/or on the absence of material adverse information that was known to or recklessy
disregarded by defendants but not disclosed in public statements by defendants during the Class Period,
plaintiffs and the other members of the Class acquired Enron securities during the Class Period a
atificidly high prices and were damaged thereby.

65.  Atthetime of sad misrepresentations and omissons, plaintiffs and other members of
the Class were ignorant of their falsity, and believed them to be true. Had plaintiffs and the other
members of the Class and the marketplace known the truth regarding the problems that Enron was
experiencing, which were not disclosed by defendants, plaintiffs and other members of the Class would
not have purchased or otherwise acquired their Enron securities, or, if they had acquired such securities

during the Class Period, they would not have done so a the artificidly inflated prices which they pad.

66. By virtue of the foregoing, defendants have violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act,

and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder.
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67.  Asadirect and proximate result of defendants wrongful conduct, plaintiffs and the
other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their respective purchases and saes of
the Company's securities during the Class Period.

SECOND CLAIM

Violation Of Section 20(a) Of
The Exchange Act Against I ndividual Defendants

68. Paintiffs repeat and redllege each and every dlegation contained above asif fully sat
forth herein.

69.  Thelndividud Defendants acted as controlling persons of Enron within the meaning of
Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act as dleged herein. By virtue of their high-level positions, and their
ownership and contractua rights, participation in and/or awareness of the Company's operations and/or
intimate knowledge of the fase financid statements filed by the Company with the SEC and
disseminated to the investing public, the Individua Defendants had the power to influence and control
and did influence and contral, directly or indirectly, the decision-making of the Company, induding the
content and dissemination of the various statements which plaintiffs contend are false and mideading.
The Individual Defendants were provided with or had unlimited access to copies of the Company's
reports, press releases, public filings and other statements dleged by plaintiffs to be mideading prior to
and/or shortly after these statements were issued and had the ability to prevent the issuance of the state-
ments or cause the statements to be corrected.

70. In particular, each of these defendants had direct and supervisory involvement in the

day-to-day operations of the Company and, therefore, is presumed to have had the power to control or
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influence the particular transactions giving rise to the securities violaions as dleged herein, and
exercised the same.

71.  Assa forth above, Enron and the Individua Defendants each violated Section 10(b)
and Rule 10b-5 by their acts and omissons as dleged in this Complaint. By virtue of their positions as
controlling persons, the Individual Defendants are liable pursuant to Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act.
Asadirect and proximate result of defendants wrongful conduct, plaintiffs and other members of the
Class suffered damages in connection with their purchases of the Company's securities during the Class
Period.

WHEREFORE, plantiffs pray for rdief and judgment, asfollows:

(& Determining that this action is a proper class action, designating plaintiffs as Lead
Faintiff and certifying plaintiffs as a class representative under Rule 23 of the Federd Rules of Civil
Procedure and plaintiffs counsd as Lead Counsd;

(b) Awarding compensatory damages in favor of plaintiffs and the other Class
members againg al defendants, jointly and severaly, for dl damages sustained as aresult of
defendants wrongdoing, in an amount to be proven at trid, including interest thereon;

(¢) Awarding plaintiffs and the Class their reasonable costs and expenses incurred in
this action, including counsdl fees and expert fees, and

(d) Such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.
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JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Maintiffs hereby demand atrid by jury.

Dated: October 22, 2001

HOEFFNER BILEK & EIDMAN

By:.
Thomas E. Bilek
Lyric Office Centre
440 Louisana Street
Suite 720

Houston, TX 77002
(713) 227-7720

MILBERG WEISSBERSHAD
HYNES & LERACH LLP

Steven G. Schulman

Samud H. Rudman

One Pennsylvania Plaza - 49th Floor

New York, NY 10119

(212) 594-5300

MILBERG WEISSBERSHAD
HYNES & LERACH LLP

William S. Lerach

Darren J. Robbins

G. Paul Howes

600 West Broadway

1800 One America Plaza

San Diego, CA 92101-3356

(619) 231-1058

CAULEY GELLER BOWMAN &
COATES

Paul J. Gdller

2255 Glades Road, Suite 421A
Boca Raton, FL 33431

(561) 750-3000
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RICHARDSON, STOOPS,
RICHARDSON & WARD

Fred. E. Stoops, Sr.

The Richardson Building

6555 South Lewis Avenue, Suite 200
Tulsa, OK 74136-1010

(918) 492-7674

LAW OFFICES OF BERNARD M.
GROSS, P.C.

Deborah Gross

1515 Locust Street

Philadelphia, PA 19102

(215) 561-3600

Attorneysfor Plaintiff



